Performance evaluation of Board and Commistees:
* Board structure and composition
* Degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities
* Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees
s Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning
* Board culture and dynamics
* Quality of relationship between Board and Management
* Efficacy of communication with external shareholders.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted declaration of independence, stating that they meet the
criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, and regulation 16 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors have also confirmed compliance with the
provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appoi and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors.

The Board took on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent directors
regarding their meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking due assessment of the
veracity of the same in terms of the requirements of regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended upto date, the extract of annual
return is no longer required to be part of the Board Report. However, in Compliance to the provisions of
Section 92 and Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return of the Company for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2022 and other policies of the Company are placed on the Company’s website at
www westemn-india.co.in

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors

M/s K. K. Chanani & Associates, Chanered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 322232E, who
are Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Extraordinary General
Mecting (“EGM™) held on 28* January, 2022, to hold office from the date of passing of resolution until
the conclusion of the 95" Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2024 subject to
review by the Board every vear, In accordance with the RBI directives, the Board and the Audit
Commitiee have reviewed the performance of the statutory auditors and recommended their
continuation as statutory auditors for the year 2022-23. The Members are required to fix remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending 31* March, 2023,

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the eligibility / independence eriteria required

under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Code of Ethics jssued by the Institute of Chanered
Accountants of India. v

The audit report by M/s K. K. Chanani & Associates, for the FY2022 is unmodified, i.e., it does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report




In line with the requirement of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations and other applicable provisions, if any, the Secretarinl Audit for the financial year 2021-22
hes been conducted by Shri Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary (PCS).

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31* March, 2022 is annexed 1o this Report.
The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark requiring explanation or
clarification from the Board,

Cost Audit

Pursuant to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by the Central
Government is not applicable to the Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s K. K. Chanani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, to carry
out the Tax Audit for the Financial Year 2021-22.

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed M/s D. K.
Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, to camry out the Internal Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021-22.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the reporting period, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the
audit committee/Board, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud

committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the requirement to mention the
same in this report is not applicable,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per business needs.
Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been approving several proposals by
circulation from time to time. :

Board Meetings

During the year, six Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Rcmn.mmweninggapmmnﬂwmaﬂnpmwidﬂnlhomiod
prescribed under the Act, Secretarial Standards—1 ($5-1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and Listing Regulations.

The Company has the following four (4) Committees, which have been established in compliance with
the relevant provisions of applicable laws and as per business requirements;

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee




AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, as reconstituted by the Board after resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat
from the board w.e.f. 3% March, 2022, comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi
Goenka (Chairman), Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and Non Independent Director Shri Subhas Jajoo.
The Committee met six times during the year. More details about the Audit Committee, including
details of the role and responsibilities of Committee, the particulars of meetings held and attendance of

ﬂmeMuﬂMmmingsmwmtheCommﬂommMpm%ich forms part of the
Annual Report,

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee, as reconstituted by the Board afler
resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat from the board w.e.f. 3* March, 2022, comprising of two
independent directors and one non-independent director namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri
Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra. The Committee met twice during the year.
Following the resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat from the Board w.e.f. 3% March, 2022, the
Committee has been reconstituted by the Board with induction of Shri Ravi Goenka (Independent
Director) as Chairman w.e.f 24% May, 2022

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, as reconstituted by the Board after resignation by Shei S. K.
Rathi from the board w.e.f. 3% March, 2022, comprises of three members, namely Shri Ravi Goenka
(Chairman), Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The CSR Committee comprised of four members during the vear, of which two were independent
directors and two non-executive directors namely Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya, Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Subhas Jajoo (Chairman) respectively, The
Committee met once during the reporting period. Following the resignation by Shri Arun Prakash
Mallawat from the Board w.c.f. 3" March, 2022, the Committee has been reconstituted by the Board
with induction of Shri Ravi Goenka (Independent Director) as a member w.e,f 24* May, 2022 and Shri
Subhas Jajoo has been appointed Chairman of the Committee.

This year the Company was not required to spend any amount as the average net profits before tax of
the previous three financial years calculated as per Section 198 of the Compamies Act, 2013 was
negative.

The Annual Repont on CSR activities of FY 2021-22 with requisite details in the specified format as
required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and
forms part of this report.

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. The same is also
available on the website of the Company viz. hitp:/fwww.western-india.co.in/policies/WICCL-
CSR_Policy.pdf

More details about all the Committees of the Board, including details of the role and responsibilities of
Committees, the particulars of meetings held and attendance of the Members at such meetings are stated
in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report,




POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy,
inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors which is annexed hereto
and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes, independence of Directors as per applicable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed /re-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in accordance with
the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All Directors, other than
Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise specifically provided under the
Articles of Association or under any statute or terms of appointment.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any material changes and commitments in terms of Section 134(3)(1) of the Act,
affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year of the Company
a¢ on 31" March, 2022 and the date of this report i.¢. 24% May, 2022,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from discrimination
and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of sexual harassment the
company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of sexual harassment as required under Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules
framed there under. However, constitution of Intemal Committee as required wnder the Act is not
applicable to the Company since the company has less than 10 employees. All employees are covered
under this Policy. During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints of
sexual harassment, hence no disclosures are applicable. This Policy is available on our website,

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

There are no significant & material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations,

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by SEBI. Accounting
policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy.
These form part of the Notes to the financial statements,

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
of the Company hereby states and confirms that:

i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2021-22, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures, if any




i) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the finencial year and of the profit of the Company for FY
21-22;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fravd and other irnegularitics;

iv)  they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v)  they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi)  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended to the
Companies Act, 2013,

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are annexed hereto forming part of this report,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Since the Company has no manufacturing activity, disclosures relating to Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company"s equity shares are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. The Company has
paid the annual listing fee to the stock exchange upto the financial year 2022-23,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report forms an integral part of this Report, as annexed hereto, together
with the Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part E of Schedule V 1o the Listing Regulations. There are no
demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account as on the date of this Report as required in Pan F
of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis
Repnnissﬂumhcrwwmmdfmnwpmnfthismmlkcpm




BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT @

The Business Responsibility Report as required under National Guidelines on Responsible Business
Conduct formulated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, and under Regulation
34(2Xf) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, describing the initiatives taken by the Company from an
environmental, social and governance perspective, is not applicable to the Company.

MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES:

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) and Code of Conduct

Creating & fraud and corruption free culture has always been the core factor of your Company. In view
of the potential risk of fraud, corruption and uncthical behavior that could adversely impact the
Company's business operations, performance and reputation, Western has emphasized even more on
addressing these risks. To meet this objective, a comprehensive *Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower
Policy”, in compliance with the provisions of Section 177(10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI
Listing Regulations, is in place. The details of the Whistie Blower Policy is explained in the Corporate
Governance Report and posted on the website of the Company.

The Company’s “Code of Business Conduct and Ethies (Code of Conduct)” is applicable 1o the
employees including dircctors of the Company and is available on the Company”'s website. All
employees including directors of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct as on
March 31, 2022.

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and report trading by Insiders

In terms of SEBI (Prohibitions of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time,
the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (Insider Code) as
approved by the Company's Board. Insiders (as defined in Insider Code) including designated
employees & persons and their relatives are, inter-alia, prohibited from trading in the shares and
securities of the Company or counsel any person during any period when the “unpublished price
sensitive information™ are available with them.

The Insider Code also requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company"s shares and prohibits dealing
in Company's shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window
is closed,

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securitics including transmission and transposition shall
be processed only in dematerialised form. Further vide Notification no. SEBVLAD-NRO/GN/2022/66
dated 24® January, 2022, SEBI has notificd that all requests for duplisate issuonce, splitting and
consolidation toc will be processed in demat mode only,

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

Efforts are underway to update Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank sccount details of
sharcholder(s) as required by SEBL The regulator, vide circular dated 3rd November, 2021 and 15th
December, 2021, has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by holders of physical
securities by 31st March, 2023, Members are requested to submit their PAN, KYC and nomination
details to the Company’s registrars, wherever pending.

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, in case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish these details
or link their PAN with Aadhar before the due date, our registrars are obligated to freeze such folios. The
holders of securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments (including dividend) and
lodge grievances only after furnishing the complete documents. In case the securities continue to remain
frozen as on 31st December, 2025, the registrae/ the Company shall refer such securities to the
administering authority under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, and/or Prevention of
Money Laundering Act, 2002,




POLICIES

In addition to its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by the
Company and uploaded on its website are as under:

Name of the Policy

Web link

Policy for selection and
appointment of Directors,
Senior

including  criteria  for
determining qualifications,
positive  attributes  and
independence  of  the
directors

http:/iwwew western-india.co.in/policies/ WICCL-
Appointment_Policy.pdf’

Archival  Policy:  for

Website content

hetp:/fiwww, westem-india.co.in/policiesWICCL-Archival_Policy.pdf

Policy on Determination of
Materiality

hntp:ifwww, western-india.co.in/policies WICCL-
Determination_of_Materiality.pdf’

Familiarisation  Program
for Independent Directors

hutpz/iwww. western-india.co, in/policies WICCL-
Familiarisation_Program pdf

Insider Trading Code

hetp:/iwww.western-india.co. in/policies/ WICCL-
Insider_Trading_Code.pdf

Policy for Determining
Material Subsidiary

hupe/fwww.western-india.co.in/policies'WICCL-
Material?620Subsidiary. pdf

Related Party Transactions
Policy

http:/Awww. western-india.co.in/policies WICC L~
Related_Party_Transactions_Policy.pdf

Policy relating to
remuneration for  the
directors, key managerial
personnel  and  other
emiployees

httpiwww. western-india.co. in/policies' WICCL-
Remuneration_Policy.pdf

Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy

httpuffwww.western-india.co.in/policies!WICCL-
Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

Code of Conduct for
Prohibition

of Insider

hitpe/fwww. western-
india.co.in/policies20170529 WICCL_Prohibition_of _Insider_Tradi
ng.pdf

T !b
Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy

ttp://www. western-india.co.in/policies/ WICCL-CSR_Policy.pdf

Prohibition of Sexual
Hurassment Policy

http:/fwww. western-india, o, in/policies/ WICCL-
Prohibition_of_Sexual _Harassment_Policy.pdf

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the support the Company continues to receive
from its Bankers and Shareholders and acknowledge the valuable contribution from the employees of

the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 24* May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board
Subhas Jajoo T.K. Bhattacharya
DIN: 00429371 DIN: 007116635

Chairman

Director
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Annexure to the Director’s Report
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Details of transactions with related parties:

Nature of Name of related party Description of Amount

Transactions Relationship | _(Rs. Lacs)

Remuneration Mr, Ashish Kedia Key Mamagement Personnel 16.68

Remuneration Mr. Ghanshymn Mohta | Key Management Personnel 1.80

Payment of Rent Shree Capital Services Lid, Associate of the related 0.11
party

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Kolkata
Dated: 24" May, 2022

Subhas Jajoo T.K. Bhattachsurya
DIN: 00429371 DIN: 00711665
Chairman Director
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(Form MR -3)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of Companies( Appointment and
Remunerarion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED,
(CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924)
21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to
good corporate practices by WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called
as ‘the Company’), Secretarial Audit was conducted in 2 manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31 March 2022, complied with the
applicable statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there-under;

(ii) The Securitics Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the rules made there-under:

(iiii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under:

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and  External Commercial
Baorrowings - Not Applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidclines prescribed under the Securitivs and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act") to the extent applicable:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 |;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not Applicable

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 20135

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companics Act and dealing with client;




g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.Not
Applicable;
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not
Applicable;
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014:
Not Applicable
J) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; Not Applicable
k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemabile
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; Not Applicable
I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 'Regulations,
1996 and 2018

(vi) The Other laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which are specifically

applicable to the Company based on their sectorfindustry are
) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors
& Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive Director but tivey have Manager/CFO and
CS. The change in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes inthe company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines,

Place: Kolkata Signature:

Date: 02.06.2022 Name of Company Sceretary in practice - Mukesh Chaturvedi
FCS No.: 11063
CP No.: 3390

UDIN: FO11063D000455078
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

In today's context, the ‘Corporate Social Responsibility’ (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way for a Company to balance its
Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing the Shareholders’ value and Stakeholders expectations.

The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, sports and supporting needy people of the
society for their overall uplifiment. Though its social activities are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its operations,
which may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly considering overall upliftment objectives.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee comprises 4 members, of which two are Independent Directors. The Committee met once during the
reporting period on 23" February, 2022. The details of members and the meeting are as under:

8L Desi Number of meetings | Number of niestings of CSR
Nao, m Dl.m:l“ e of C8R Committee Commitiee attended during
P held during the vear the year
1 wim& ool i e , 1 1
03.03.2022) PO Thimct) |
Member (Non-executive |
A M1 Mo Non-Independent Direcior) ; A
Member
3 | Mr. Subhas Jajoo ( Non-extcutive 1 1
Non-Independent Director)
4 | Mr. T K Bhattacharya Member 1 1
{Independent Diroctor)

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR commitice, CSR Policy and CSR projecis approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the said Policy along with composition of CSR Committee and CSR Projects are placed on the
website of the Company and the web link for the same is: htpfwww.western-india.co.in/policies/WICCL-
CSR_Policy.pdfl
4, Details of Impsct assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursnance of sub-rule (3) of rule § of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)
Mot Applicable

S.  Details of the amount available for sct off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, If any:

6!
?I

(Rs Lacs)
SL Financial Year | Amount available for sct-off | Amount required 1o be set-
N from preceding  finuncial | off for the financial year, if
years {in Rs) any (in Rs)

NIL

(b) Surplus arlsing out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if amy: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Ta+7b- 7¢): NIL

IS

Average nel profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Loss Rs, 48.70 Lacs
() Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs.(0.97) Lacs




8, (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

&)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total — Amount rori Amount transferred to | Amount transferved io any Tund specified wader
Speat  for  the Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII us per second proviso to section 135(5)
Financlal Year section 135(6)
(in Rs.) ' Name of the
Amount Date of transfer Fund Amount Date of transfer
Nat Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Mot Applicable |Not Applicable| Not Applicable
(b) Detalls of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financil year:
W ® @ 0 @ W i [ ™ i i)
R T e e [t | e o Tpiviin
mumw?ﬂuw hmm'fmm:nmw'm :
i ihe Ak, m‘ Rk Adr et r he sk
o 1355} 1m
) AVerden
(&1
Swie. | Diirien Nasee Reglrirstia
warihbes,
NIL
(¢) Detalls of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
AN 2} 3) ) &) {6) L] (8
5L | Name of | Item from | Local Location of the project, | Amount | Mode of | Mode of implementation -
No. | the the list of area speat for | impiementati | Through inplementing
Project activities In | (Yes! g the on = | agemey.
schedule | No). project | Direct
VIl to the (in Re). | (Yes/Nol
Act
CSR
State. Distriet. Name, registration
number.
~ NIL
{d) Amount spenit in Administrasive Qverheads — NIL
(<} Amount spsat on Impect Asscasment, If applicable - ML
(i Total amount spent for the Financial Year(§b+8c8d+8e)- Not Applicable
(g) Execess amount for set off, if any
5L Amount
No, P_Irllmhr (s, Lacs))
(1) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) | (0.97)
(i) | Total ameunt spent for the Financial Year NIL
(iil) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i)(1)] NIL
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programemes or activities of the NIL
_previous financial ifan -
{v) | Amount available for set ﬁ in succeeding Financial years [(iii}-(iv)] NIL
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

51 | Preceding Amouni Amount spent | Amount transferved to nny fund specified | Amount
No. | Financial transferred o | in the | under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), if | remaining to
Year. Unspent  CSR | reporting wny. be spent in
Account under | Financial Year succesding
section 135 (6} (in Re, Laes). Name finamchal
(In Rs. Lacs) of the _ vears
Fund Amount (in Bs). | Date of transfer. (in Rs. Lacs)
L 201819 NIL 10.11 NIL MNIL Mot Applicable NIL
2 201920 NIL 10,45 NIL WIL Not Applicable Nil.
3, 2020-21 NIL NIL NIL ML, Not Applicable NIL
TOTAL _ 20.56

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(M 2) (3 (#) (5) (6) L) (8) E)]

Sk | Preject | Name of | Financial Project Total Amoumnt Cumulative Status of the
No. | Ix the Year in | durstion. amount | spent on (he | amount spemt | project .
Project. | which the alloeated | project  im | at the end of
project was for the | the reporting Completed
cammenced. project reparting Financial Magoing.

(mRs.). | Financlal Year. {in Rs)
Year {im
Rs).
NIL

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capitul asset, firmish the details reluling to the asset so created or aoquired ihrough CSR spam
in the financial year (asset-wise details),

(s} Date of creation or acquisition of the capital assei(s); Not Applicable

{h) Amnf&ﬂmhaﬂnwmﬂ%ofgﬂm:ﬂmﬁmﬁaﬁk

(€} Details of the enfity or public authority or beneficlary under whose name such capital nssct is registered, heir address elc.:
Mot Applicable

() Provide dewnils of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (inchuding complete address and location of the capital asset);
Not Applicable

11, Specify the reason(s), il the campany has fuiled to spendiwo per cent of the nvernge net profit as per section §3505) ; Not
Applicable

Place: Kolkata Far Western India Cammercial Co. Lid.
Date; 24 May, 2022
Subshas Jajoo T.K. Bhattacharya
Chairman of Member
CSR Commiliee DIN: DDT1 1665
DINGO429371
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Western India Commercial Company Limited (WICCL) believes that for its operation and growth to
be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs, Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social uplifiment, development and promotion of sports,
education, healthcare, rural and urban development etc. WICCL believes in making social
development as an integral part of its business activitics 50 as o bring about a meaningful change in
the lives of people. WICCL considers social responsibility as a voluntary act rather than an additional
activity mandated by statute.

WICCL has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy.
WICCL will maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
policy and that the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with Schedule
VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,
The contents of WICCL's CSR Policy arc given below:-
1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy
WICCL Programmes will focus on development and promotion of sports, education,
healthcare, rural and urban development and supporting needy people of the society for their
overall upliftiment. Though its social activities will be focusing primarily on areas surrounding
its operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly
considering overall objectives.
2. Mandate of Corporate Social Respousibility

WICCL is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

4. ldentification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines formulated or
laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VI to the Companies Act,
2013.

£, Organisational Mechanism

WICCL has co-promated a Section 8 Company alongwith other Companies to undertake
activities relating to development of sponts for fulfilling its CSR objectivities.

6. Implementation

CSR Commities of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initintives
and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the company.

7. Budget - CSR Corpus
WICCL will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for

social initiatives, Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or
progressive basis,




8. Performance Management
WICCL. will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the performance,
9. Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company’s engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on its website and through
its Annual Reports ete.

10. Mansgement Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy of
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and compassion, characterised
by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the comerstone of our
CSR Policy.

11, Review of Policy
CSR Committee of the Board of Western India Commercial Company Limited will review

the policy from timewthmhmdmthcmmsmdsmdwphﬁomnﬂhtmw
beneficiaries and make suitable modifications as may be necessary.

Place: Kolkata For Western India Commercial Co. Lid.
Date: 24" May, 2022

Subhas Jajoo Ravi Goenka

Chairman of Independent

CSR Commilice Directaor

DIN: 08209376 DIN: 01393012
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the directors

Introduction

Western India Commercial Co. Ltd, (WICCL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates
a culure of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance,

WICCL recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the
Board. WICCL. aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Exccutive and Independent Directors.

AN lusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to detenmine the independence of
Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company.

Terms and References
In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Nomination & Remuneration Committec™ means the committee constituted by WICCL's Board
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Policy

The Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee, and the Board, shall review on an annual hasis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective it 1o have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant
for the Company’s business operations,

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Commitice may take into account
factors such as:

* General understanding of the Company”’s business dynamics and social porspective;

» Educational and professional background;

= Standing in the profession;

* Personzl and professional ethics, integrity and values;

e Willingness to devate sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and responsibilitics
effectively.

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

* Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);

o Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

« Shall give his written consent in preseribed form 1o act as a Director;

* Shall endeavour 1o attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee
Member, the Commitiee Meetings;

* Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees and Senior
Management Personnel;
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* Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate, firms,
or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the Board in
every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

* Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013
und other relevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables
the success of the Company’s business. '

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determination of
independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the Director,

To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013,

The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013,

A rafips ¢ comumittes membersfiing

The members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience fo contribute 1o
effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the time
involved in & Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual
Director and making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 shall be
Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more
than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed Company.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairman of more than 5
committees across all companies in which he holds directorship.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders" Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be
included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and
Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

/
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees

Introduction

Western India Commercial Co. Lwd. (WICCL) recognizes the importance of aligning the business
objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore formulated
the remuneration policy for its directors, key managerial personnel and other employees keeping in
view the following objectives:
= Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attrace,
retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
* Ensuring that relationship of remuncration to performance is clear and meets the performance
benchmarks.
* Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.
However, there is no incentive pay at present,

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees of the Company.

d
In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a Whole-
time Director;
ii) the Company Secretary;
iii} the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by WICCL's Board
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Policy

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall review and
approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company
within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company where required. Non-
Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the
Committees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to be
paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending Board and Committee
meetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their duties as Directors.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall also review
and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the
Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according to their qualifications,
and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be based on various factoes
such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Execcutive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following;

a) Basic Pay
b) Perquisites and Allowances
¢) Retiral benefits

%



Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

1) Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year
Not Applicable, as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board /
Committee meetings.

i) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief

F&::ntiul Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year
I

iif) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial vear
Not Applicable.

iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
2 (Two)

v] Average percentile Increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel in the Iast financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional cireumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration
Not applicable,

vi) It is bereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFPORT @

The Board of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Company™) is pleased o present the
Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31" March, 2022. This Report
includes a review of how corporate governance acts as the foundation for our corporate activity and is
embedded in our business and the decisions we make. Corporate governance is about promoting
faimess, transparency, sccountability, commitment to values, cthical business conduct and about
considering all stakeholders’ interests while conducting business, It is prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), and amendments thereto. It contains the
Corporate Govemnance policies and practices of the Company.

(A) COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that corporate governance is a continuous joumney towards sustainable value creation for
all the stakeholders, which is driven by our values and built on the foundation of Assurance. It
encompasses a sct of systems and practices to ensure that the Company”s affairs are being managed in
a manner which ensures sccountability, transparency and faimess in all transactions in the widest
sense. Our Corporate Governance principles are a reflection of our culture, our policies, our -
relationship with stakeholders and our commitment o values and built on the foundation of assurance.
The Board of Directors (“Board™) helps to ensure that we have appropriate govemnance in place, both
to support our operations and protect our Members' interest. As a good corporate citizen, the
Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, openness, faimess,
professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it thereby
paving the way for its long-term success. The requirements under the Listing Regulations mandated
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) have been fully complied with. We believe,
Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly improve sustainable value
creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively sirive to achieve. The Company is fully
committed to the principles of transparency, integrity and accountability in all spheres of its
operations and has been practicing the principles of good corporate governance over the years, We are
committed 1o meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders. In keeping with this commitment, the
Company has been upholding fair and ethical business and corporate practices and transparency in its
dealings and continuously endeavors to review, strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedures so
as to bring in transparency and efficiency in its business.

(B} Board of Directors

The members of the Board of the Company are eminent personalities from various fields. We believe
that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision
and policy approach to improve the quality of governance. Keeping with the commitment to the
principles of integrity and transparency in business operations for good corporate governance, the
Company"s policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent and non-independent directors 1
maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of govemance and
management.The Board's actions and decisions are aligned with the Company”s best interests. The
Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, direction and performance of




the Company.The Board is committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company's value
creation. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance,
objective and independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities,
thus ensuring that the management adheres 10 ethics, transparency and disclosures.

Compaosition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board comprises of Independent and Non- Independent Directors. The strength of the
Board as on 31" March, 2022 was four members all of whom are Non- Executive Directors. Out of
them one is Independent Director and three are Non- Independent Directors of which one is Woman
Director. Shri Subhas Jajoo is the Chairman of the Board. One more Independent Director namely,
Shri Ravi Goenka has been appointed on the Board w.e.f. 24* May, 2022, raising the total strength of
the Board to five and Independent Directors to two.

In terms of the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company
submit necessary disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board and/ or the
Committees of other companies with changes therein, if any, on a periodical basis. The directors are
persons of eminence in areas such as profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration, ete,
and bring with them experience/skills which add value to the performance of the Board, The directors
are selected purely on the basis of merit with no discrimination on race, colour, religion, gender or

The Independent Directors on the Board have vast experience in general corporate management,
finance, investment and other allied fields. The Independent Directors make annual disclosure of
lndepmdemeloﬂwCumpnny.m&ywdwmmgnmmufﬂze@mpmyismndmad by the
Manager subject to the supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors. The | ndependent
Directors have made disclosures to the Board confinming that there are no material financial and/or
commercial transactions between them and their relatives and the company which could have
potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion of the Board, the independent
directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 and

are independent of the management.
Board Meetings and Attendance of Dircetors:
Six Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 on the following dates:
A% | Date of Board Mecting | N> f&’:‘:"”
1| 30" June, 2021 5
2 | 13™ August, 2021 5
3 | 15" November, 2021 6
4 | 31" December, 2021 5
_5 14* February, 2022 5
6 | 04™March, 2022 1
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Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attendance at Board Meetings and at the previous
Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee mliminps held as

Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships

on 31" March, 2022, are given below:
SI | Name of the Category No.of | Attended No. of Number of other
Noo | Director Board last other Bourd Committes
Meetings | AGM | Directorship positions (@)
attended ™ As As
Chairman | Member
1| Subhas Jajoo Non-Executive 6 Yes 2 B -
2 | Raj Kamal Devi Non-Executive 3 No - -
Bangur
3| LP, Mundrs Non-Executive & Yes 5 - 2
4 | T.K. Bhanacharys | Independent 6 Yes 1 1 i
Notes:

(*) includes directorships held in public limited Companies only.
(Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded)

(@) includes only positions held in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committes of
the Board of Directors as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

None of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than twenty
companics at the same time, None of them has directorships in more than ten public companies. For
reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of private companies that are either holding or
subsidiary companies of a public company are included; while directorships in dormant companies are
excluded. For the purpose of reckoning the directorships in listed companies, only equity listed
companics have been considered,

As per declarations received, no director serves as an independent director in more than seven equity
listed companies or in more than three equity listed companies if hefshe is a whole-time
director/managing director in any listed company.

None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees, nor a chairperson in more than five
committees across all public companies in which he/she was a director.

Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as highlighted herein, the outstanding attendance record
and participation of the directors in Board/Commiltee meetings indicates their commitment and
ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities as Board/Committee members,
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Name of the other listed entity where the director is a director along with category of directorship:

G

S1 | Name of the Director Name of the Listed Entity | Category of Directorship
No.
1 | LP. Mundra N. B. L. Industrial Finance Non-Executive Non-
Co. Lad. Independent Director
2 | Raj Kamal Devi Bangur NIL NIL
3| Subhas Jajoo NIL NIL
4 | TK. Bhattacharya "N. B. 1. industrial Finance Non-Executive-Independent
Co. Lid. Director

None of the directors of the Company are related inter-se.

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the below
mentioned skills / expertise / competencies in the context of the business and the sector in which the
Company is operating, for the Company to function effectively:

Financial, Regulatory /

Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finunce function of

m& an enterprise, resulting in proficiency in financial management, capital
8 allocation and financial reporting process or experience in actively
supervising various functions

Strategy and strategic Ability to think strategically, identify and assess strategic opportunities &

planning threats and contribute towards developing effective strategics in the
context of the Company’s policies & priorities,

Business Exposure Experience in driving business success with an understanding of diverse
business environments, economic conditions, culture, regulatory
frameworks and a broad perspective on domestic market oppertunities
including exposure in the secondary market.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting in a
practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic planning and
risk management. Demonstrated strengths in developing talent, planning
successions and driving change and long-term growth,

Mergers and A history of leading growth through acquisitions and other business

Acquisitions combinations with the ability to assess *build or buy’ decisions.

Corporate Govemnance | Service on a public company board to develop insights about maintaining |

board and management accountability, protecting shareholder interests
and observing appropriate governance practices

2%




The above skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually available with
the Board as under:-

Name of the Director | Financial, | Strategy | Business | Leadership | Mergersand | Corporaie
Regulatory / and Exposure Acquisitions | Govermznce
Legal & | strategic
Risk planning
Management
Sublas Jajoo v " v 7 v v
Ry Kamal Devi
B v v 4 v v
J.P. Mundra v v s U 4
T.K. Bhamacharya v v v v
Other Directorships

None of the Directors is a director in more than 10 public limited companies or acts as an independent
director in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Directors acts as a member of more than
10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than § committees across all public limited companies in
which he/she is a director,

Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and Our Code (the Code) is applicable
to the Directors and employees. The Code gives guidance and support needed for ethical conduct of
business and compliance of laws. The Code reflects the core values of the Company viz. Ownership
Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence, All the directors including Senior
Muanagement Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance 10 the Code of Conduct as on

March 31, 2022. The code is available on the official website of the company: www westem-
india.co.in

(C) Committees of the Board

In order o enable Board 1o focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority
delegated 1o cach of the Committees, Board has constituted following committees. Each Committee of
the Board is guided by its charter, which defines the scope, powers and composition of the
Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for
information or approval.

The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors:

L Audit Committee,

> Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee, and
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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The Audit Committee as on 31" March, 2022 comprised of one Independent Director and one Non-
Independent director. All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and they have
gccounting or related financial management expertise. The Audit Commitiee was reconstituted
following the resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat from the board w.e.f. 3 March, 2022, by
inducting Shri Ravi Goenka, an Independent Director on the Board, Presently, the Committee
comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya and Non Independent Director Shri Subhas Jajoo. The primary purpose of the Audit
Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Western India Commercial Company
Limited, (the “Company™) in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect 1o:

1.  Audit Committee

a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company, including its intemal
control procedures, the integrity of the audited financial results and other financial information
provided by the Company to its stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the Company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,

c) the Company’s independent auditors' qualification and independence,

d) the audit of the Company's financial statements, and the performance of the Company's
internal audit function and its Independent Auditors.

Terms of Reference;

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committes covers areas mentioned under Pan C of Schedale
Il [See Regulation 18(3)] of the Listing Regulations and section 177 of the Companics Act, 2013,
besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the Members of the Audit
Committes are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial statements. The brief
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are outlined here under:

- Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of intermal control systems
and the disclosure of its financial information;
® Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:-
a. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement of the Board's
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
¢. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
compliance with listing and other legal requirements refating to financial statements;
disclosure of any related party ransactions;
g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report.
¢ Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
» Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / notice and the repont
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submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the wtilization of proceeds of a public or rights

issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the

company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of

audit process;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concer;

Approval (including omnibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transactions with

related parties;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of internal audit reports;

Reviewing the findings of any observations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irvegularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature and

reporting the matter 1o the Board;

Evaluation of internal financial controls;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and intemnal auditors, adequacy of

the internal control system;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience

and background, ete. of the candidate;

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Reviewing management letters / letters of intemal control weaknesses issued by the statutory

avditors;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor;

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanism;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and invesiments;

Reviewing valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever necessary.

Statement of deviations:

(#) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, wherever
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offer document
[ prospectus { notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever applicable,

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committes,
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Consthtution of the Audit Committee

The Composition of the Committes, together with the details of the attendance of each member during
the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Ne | NameoftheDirector | Designation | 083 Category

| (et wat orasom | Chairman e Inmndﬁﬁc;m
il . sk N Iidogatt Dl
3. | Subhas Jajoo P D Nan Exeauive Noo-

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Six Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-22 on the following dates:

SL | Date of Audii Commitice
No. | Meeting

1| 30™ June, 2021

2 | 13™ Auguse, 2021

3 | 15 November, 2021

4 | 31" Decensber, 2021

5 | 14" February, 2022

6 | 04" March, 2022

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is constituted in compliance with
the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
committee formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommends to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel. The Commitiee reviews and recommends payment of annual salaries,
commission and other conditions of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The remuneration
policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of performance / achievements an
a periodical basis. No Stock option has been granted to any of the Directors during the financial year
2021-22. The remuneration policy forms part of the Directors’ Report. The Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee was reconstituted following the resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat
from the board w.e.f. 3™ March, 2022, by inducting Shri Ravi Goenka, an Independent Director on the
Board, Presently, the Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka
(Chairman), Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and one Non Independent Director Shri J.P. Mundra.
The Company doesn’t have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with any of the non-executive
directors. None of the Directors have been given any remuneration during the financial year under
review except Meeting Fees.
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(a) To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining qualifications,
positive attributes/experience for appointment and independence of a director;

(b) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and 10 ensure compliance with the remuneration
palicy set forth by the Company;

(¢) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board for their
appointment and/or removal;

(d) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and of the
board of directors as a whole;

(e) To extent or comtinue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

() To report on the systems and on the amount of the annval remuneration, in whatever form, of
directors and key managerial/senior management persoanel o the Board. <

(g) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

The brief terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member during
the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Sr. | Name of the Director | Designation | Meetings Category

No. Attended :
b | m:m%mm e ‘ o Exmgi::gdmmm
2. | T.K. Bhattacharya Member > Non- Em;;::l::depmml
3. | L.P. Mundra | Member 2 mﬁ*ﬁg‘m

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Two NRC Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-22 on the following dates:

v 26"April, 2021
v 04* March, 2022

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Dirvectors
* Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
« Contribution st Board or Committee meetings.
» Adherence to cthical standards and code of conduct of the Company.
* Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board/ Committee meetings.
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Details of meeting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31" March, 2022:

Director Category Sitli;f']l?‘m

Subhas Jajoo Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 23,400
Raj Kamal Devi Bangur |  Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 7,500
J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 18,600
T.K. Bhattacharya Non- Executive ~Independent Director 25,300
A. P, Mallawat Non- Executive -Independent Director 20,900
S. K. Rathi Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 10,000

Total _ 1,06,200

3. Stakcholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders” Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Board is in line with the
preseribed provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and the
Committee inter alia approves transfer & transmission of shares, issue of duplicate/re-materialised
shares and consolidation & splitting of certificates, review measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by sharcholders, review the adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company
in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of
complaints from investors including imfer-afia non-receipt of annual reports and non-receipt of
declared dividends ete. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was reconstituted following the
resignation by Shri S. K. Rathi from the board w.e.f. 3" March, 2022, by inducting Shri Ravi Goenka,
an Independent Director on the Board. Presently, the Committee comprises of two Independemt
Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and one Non
Independent Director Shri J.P. Mundra.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Composition of the Committee during the year 2021-22 is given below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director Designation Category
. Non- Executive Non -Independent
1 J.P. Mundra Chairman Dicector
S. K. Rathi Non- Executive Non -Independent
2 | eigned wet 03032022 | Member Director
3 T.K. Bhattacharya Member | Non- Executive Independent Director

Mectings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
No Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2021-22.
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Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances is

provided here under:

Name Ghanshyam Mohta (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)
Address 21, Strand Road, Kolkata- 700 001 (West Bengal),

Telephone No 033- 2230 7905

E-mail westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer
No investor grievances were received during the financial year from the stakeholders. Further there
were no pending transfers for the year under review.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitiee has been constituted by the Board for formulating
and overseeing the execution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Committee was reconstituted following the resignation by
Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat from the board w.e.t. 3% March, 2022, by inducting Shri Ravi Goenka,
an Independent Director on the Board. Presently, the Committee comprises of two Independent
Directors. namely, Shri Ravi Goenka, Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and two Non Independent
Directors Shri Subhas Jajoo (Chairman) and Shri J.P. Mundra,

The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member during
the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Sr. | Name of the Director Desigonation | Meetings Category
No. Attended
A, P, Mallawat 7 - Nom- Executive Independent
L (resigned w.e.f. 03-03-2022) Chairman ! Director
2. | TK. Bhattacharya Member 1 i e W
WNome Executive Non-
3. | JLP. Mundra Member I Independent Director
. Non- Executive Non-
4. | Subhas Jajoo Member I Independent Director

The CSR Report as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended 31* March, 2022
is attached to the Board's Report.

Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
One CSR Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2021-22 on 23" February, 2022,
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Details of General Body Meeting

Annual General Meeting
The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution, if
any, passed thereat is provided hereunder:

Day, Dal Time
31" March, Saturday, 25™ September, 21, Strand Road, Y
2021 2021 at 10.30 AM. Kolkata - 700001 s
31" March, | Wednesday, 30 September, 21, Strand Road, v
2020 2020 at 1:30 P.M, Kolkata - 700001 98
31" March, | Saturday, 7 September, 2019 21, Strand Road, Yes
2019 at 10:30 AM. Kolkata - 700001

An Extraordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company was called for appointing the
Statutory Auditors of the Company, on 28® January, 2022 at 10,30 AM. at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata
=700001 to comply with the requirements of the Circular no. RBI2021.22725 -
RefNo.DoS.COARG/ SEC.01/ 0891.001/2021- 22 dated 27 April 2021 [(Guidelines for
Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs)] issued by the Reserve Bank of India (*RBI
Guidelines’). The members have appointed M/s, K. K. Chanani & Assoclates, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 322232E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
office until the conclusion of the 95th Annual General Mecting of the Company.

Remote e-voting and ballot at the AGM

SEBI has issued a circular dated 9 December 2020 for increase in the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholders/vetail shareholders. It has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat
account holders, via a single login credential, through their demat accountsiwebsites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat sccount holders will be able to cast their vote without having to
register again with the e-voling service providers (ESPs). This will not only facilitate seamless
authentication but also enhance the ease and convenience of participating in the e-voting process,

The Company has engaged NSDL to provide e-voling facility to all the members. Members whose
names appear on the register of members as on the record date shall be efigible to participate in the ¢-

voting,

The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM, Members who have not
cast their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM,
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(D) Means of Communication

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded 10 Stock
Exchange immediately upon approval by the Beard of Directors and are simultaneously published
in newspapers in English and Bengali (regional language) namely Business Standard and Sukhabar,

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern, Quarterly
Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange and are also disseminated on
the website of the Company.

During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or analysts.
General Sharcholders' Information

Annual General Meeting | Saturday, the 20° August, 2022 at 1030 AM. at

21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 00}

Book Closure Dates: 13.08.2022 to 20.08.2022 (both days inclusive)
E-voting Dates: 17.08,2022 to 19.08.2022

Financial Year 2021-22

Dividend payment date Nadi?iduﬂhubeenmmmwdedbymmmhwr.
Listing on Stock ' g i :

A3k 115" 2E0 O

Exchange The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).
7, Lyons Range,
Kolkata — 700 001
The Company has paid the annual listing fee of the exchange for the
financial year 2022-23.

Stock Code Serip Code: 10033036
Code No.:7401

ISIN INE925MO1015

Trunsfer of shares to IEPF

Pursuant to Section 124(6) of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authaority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer snd Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, all shares in respect of which
dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the
Company to the IEPF, within 30 days of such shares becoming due for transfer. As provided under
these Rules, the sharcholder would be allowed to claim such unpaid dividends and the shares
transferred to the Fund by following the procedure prescribed under the said IEPF Rules, 2016,

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
Tentative Financial Calendar for the year 2022-23

Financial Year 1™ April, 2022- 31 March, 2023
First quarter results Within 45 days of the end of the quarter
Second Quarter and Half-yearly results
| Third quarter results
Fourth quarter & Annual results Within 60 days of the end of the financial year
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Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L67120WB1928PLC093924

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Lid. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company
having its registered office at 23, R.N, Mukherjee Road, 5* Floor, Kolkata — 700 001, Contact
No.033-22482248, 22435029, Fax: 033.22484787. Email 1d: mdplde@yahoocom RTA also
maintains a website: www.mdpl.in

Share Transfer System

a)  Transfer of Securities held in physical Mode

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition
requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. Further, vide circular dated 24th January,
2022, SEBI has notified that all request for duplicate issuance, splitting and consolidation requests too
will be processed in 2 demat mode only.

b)  Nomination facility for sharcholding

As per the provision of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in respect of
shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may obtain a nomination form by
writing to the Company Secretary of the Company or RTA. Members holding shares in
dematerialized form should contact their Depository Participant (DP) in this regard.

¢) Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account details:

As required by SEBI, the regulator, vide circular dated 3rd November, 2021, and 15th December,
2021, has mandated fumishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by holders of physical
securities by 31st March, 2023. Members are requested to submit their PAN, KYC and nomination
details to the Company 's registrars.

d) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the Company's
share capital is being carried out by an independent external Auditor (Practicing Company Secretary)
with a view to reconcile the total  share capital admitted with National Securities Depaository Ltd.
(NSDL) and Central Depasitory Services {India) Ltd. (CDSL) and shares held in physical form, with
the issued and listed capital. The Auditors Certificate in regard to the same is submitted to CSE.

Distribution of sharcholding as on 31/03/2022

ShareHoiding | NoofHolers|  %age NoofShares |  Yeage
Lipio 500 3 30,00 218 11944
501 to 1000 . | 10.00 725 40278
1001 to 2000 1 10.00 11.1111

L_;NE o 3000 3 30.00 39.3333
3001 to 4000 o' 1 10.00 19,7500
4001 to 5000 4 1 .00 24,5833
Grand Total 10 100.00 100.0000
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity
As on 31" March, 2022, 99.81% of the Company's total equity shares representing 17,965 equity

shares were held in dematerialized form and the rest were in physical form. The Company’s equity
shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Status of total number of shares dematerialized and in physical form as on 31 March 2022:

Depository No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital
NSDL 15,490 §6.06
CDSL 2475 13.75
Physical 35 0.19
Total 18,000 ' 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants' Convertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Mukesh
Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct Secretarial
Audit of records and documents of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Depositories
Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and all the relevant Regulations and
Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable 1o the Company. The audit also covers the reconciliation of
share capital on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and total
paid up and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total paid up capital is in agreement with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with
NSDL & CDSL.

Risk Management

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks
and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit Commitee of the
Company on a continuous basis. The Audit Committee ensures that risks to the Company’s continued
existence as a going concern and to its development are identified and addressed on timely basis.
However, constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable to the Company in terms of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

Address for Correspondence

Company Secretary

Ghanshyam Mohta

21, Strand Road,

Kolkata — 700 001

Tel: 033-22307905

| Fax: 033-22131650

Email ID: westernindiscommercialcolid@gmail.com
Website: www.westem-india.co.in
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Share transfer are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and approved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, if the documents are complote in all respects, within 15 days
from the date of lodgment. The same is examined by a Practicing Company Secretary on half yearly
basis and a Certificate as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations is obtained and
forwarded to CSE where the Company's shares are listed.

Credit Ratings

No instances have occurred during the financial vear 2021-22 which warrant the Company 1o obtain
Credit Rating.

(E) Other Disclosures

al

b)

d)

€}

During the financial year 2021-22 there was no materially significant Related Party
Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large except those disclosed in the Board’s

Report.

There was no non-compliance by the entity, penalty, strictures imposed by stock exchange or
the boand or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior management personnel.

The Company has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading' (“the
Code™) in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended upto date. The code expressly
lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be made, by the
directors and the senior management personnel while dealing with the shares of the Company
on the bourse and cautioning them on the consequences of non-compliance thereof. The
Company has also formed Whistle Blower Policy, Further, we affirm that no personnel have
been denied access to the Audit Commitiee. Employees can report to the Management
concerns regarding unethical behavior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct Policy.

The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing
Regulations.

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary, hiis issued a centificate as required under
clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as director of the company by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this report.
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Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors:-
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor are as follows:

Tvpe of servics PSSl C s e VI S U ::_-}."'E;ff_'l:r__.i;__;i_w ~ FY 2030-31
Audit Fees 56,012 16,500
Tax Audit Fees 6,100 6,100
Others - 2,844

No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman during the financial
year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable,

Non-Mandatory / Discretionary requirements of regulation 27(1) & Part E of Schedule II of the
SEBI Listing Regulations:

Sharcholders Rights:
The quarterly/half yearly results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the same are sent 1o the
CSE and are also posted on the Company”s website,

Auditor’s Opinion:
The Company's financial statements for the financial year 2021-22 do not contain any audit
qualification.

Reporting of internal auditor;
The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee.

Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading:

As reported here in above, the Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor
and report trading by insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, This
Policy also includes code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information, initial and continual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on a need-to-know
basis. This Policy is available on our website. The Company Secretary is the “Compliance Officer”,
The Code of Conduct is applicable 1o all Directors and designated persons as defined in the Code of
Conduct.

Compliance Certificate on Corpornte Governance

As required by provisions of Chapter IV of the Listing Regulations, the Compliance Certificate on
Corporate Governance is annexed 1o this Report.

CEOQ and CFO Certification
The CFO acts as Manager of the Company as well. The Manager and CFO Certification is provided
in this Annual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.
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Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

CERTIFICATE
(pursuant to elase 10 of Part C of Schedule Vof LODR}

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securitics and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (LODR) in respect of Westem India Commercial Company Limited (CIN;
L6T120WBI1928PLC093924) 1 hereby certify that:

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 2022, none of the directors on the board of the
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of
companies by the SEBI / Minisery of Corporate Affairs or any such statitory authority.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13* June, 2022 Sneha Agarwal
Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 38284
CP No.: 14914

UDIN: A038284D000486303
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TE GOVE MPLIAN ERTIFICA

To,

The Members of

Western India Commercial Company Limited,
(CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924)

I, Sneha Agarwal, Company Secretary in Practice, have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by Western India Commercial Company Limited (“the Company™), for the
year ended 3 st March 2022, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (collectively referred to as
“Listing Regulations™),

Management's Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and
documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report as stipulated
in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether, the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Govemnance as specified in the Listing
Regulations refemed to in above paragraph. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial stastements of the Company.

I have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of
providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the
Company.

Opinion

Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations
provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2)
ad paras C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31" March,
2022,

I state that such compliance Is neither an assurance as 1o the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13" June, 2022 Sneha Agarwal
Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 38284
CP No.: 14914

UDIN: A038284D000486261
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M:nEr and CHPO Certification

To,

The Board of Directors,
Western India Commercial Co. Lad,
Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

I, Ashish Kedia, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, certify that:

l‘

I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of WESTERN INDIA
COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information of the Company and the Board's Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022. 1 state that:

2. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading:

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs for the period
presented in this report and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

There are no transactions entered into by the Company duwring the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct,

. 1 accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting

und that I have evaluated the effectiveness of interal control systems of the Company pertaining
to financial reporting and confirm that there have been no material weakness in internal controls
over financial reporting including any corrective actions with regard to deficiencies.

. 1 have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

#. that there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the

year;

b.  All significant changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the same
have been disclosed suitably in the notes 1o the financial statements; and

€. that there were no instances of significant fsud that involve management or other emplovees
who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

I further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduet and Ethics for the year covered by this Report.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24™ May, 2022
Ashish Kedia
Manager and
Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND OUTLOOK

The global economy grew by 5.9% in 2021 following a contraction of 3.1% in 2020. Countries across the
globe focused on vaccination coverage and implemented various economic stimuli to minimise the
impact of COVID-19 and hasten economic recovery. The growth momentum started slowing towards the
end of 2021, as the effects of fiscal and monetary stimuli dissipated along with the onset of the Omicron
variant of COVID-19.

While the ecarly forecast for global economic growth in 2022, the recent geo-political tensions and
conflict in Ukraine will weigh on global growth projections and also lead to high inflation in the short
term. The conflict is a major blow to the global economy that will hurt growth and raise prices.

The International Monetary Fund in its recent report slashed its forecast for global economic growth by
nearly & full percentage point, citing Russia’s war in Ukraine, and waming that inflation was now a “clear
and present danger™ for many countries.

The war is expected to further increase inflation, the IMF said in its latest World Economic Outlook,
warning that a further tightening of Westem sanctions on Russia 10 target energy exports would cause
another major drop in global output.

According to IMF, other risks to the outlook include a sharper- than expected deceleration in China
prompted by a flare-up of COVID-19 lockdowns. Rising prices for food, energy and other goods could
trigger social unrest, particularly in vulnerable developing countries.

Downgrading its forecasts for the second time this year, IMF said it now projects global growth of 3.6%
in both 2022 and 2023, a drop of 0.8 and 0.2 percentage point, respectively, from its January forecast due
to the war's direct impact on Russia and Ukraine and global spillovers. Medinm-term global growth is
expecied to decline to about 3.3% over the medium- term, compared to an average of 4,1% in the period
from 2004 to 2013, and growth of 6,1% in 2021.

INDIAN ECONOMY

Amoang above global economy backdrop, strong economic fundamentals will likely help India avoid the
long-term impacts of the ongoing conflict in Ukraine. However, the crisis has clouded India's growth
outlook as well. Crude oil prices are lingering much above US$100 per barrel and edible oil prices are up
20% - all of which are eritical imports from the two warring nations, India also partly meets its fertilizer
needs from the region. For India, which has been bautling inflation for a while now, this situation is
making matters worse. Higher fuel and fertilizer prices will increase subsidy costs. Furthermore, capital
outflows and rising import bills will weigh on the current account balance and currency valuation.

The successful rollout of the world’s largest vaccination drive, pick-up in government expenditure and
better preparedness compared with the first wave of the pandemic limited the negative economic impact
of the second wave.

India’s gross domestic product (GDP) is expected to have grown around 8.7% in the financial year 2021-
22, which is the highest among the leading economics, and the growth is likely to be around 7-7.5% in
the current financial year, according to some of the latest estimates. India's growth trajectory is expected
to remain sicady in 2022-23, barring prolonged geo-political tensions, supported by various dynamic
reforms undertaken by the government during the past fow years.

The overall Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation has been hovering around 7%, i.e. beyond the upper
end of RBI's tolerance and could remain elevated in the near future due 10 high input cost pressures,
largely stemming from supply chain disruptions and upward pressure on crude oil.
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India’s financial sector is a highly diversified one comprising commercial banks, insurance companies,
non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial
entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking and non-banking financial companies (‘NBFCs").
Over the past few years NBFCs have emerged as important financial intermediaries, particularly for the
small-scale and retail sectors in underserved areas and unbanked sectors. The sector turned out 1o be
growth engine in an environment where significant importance is assigned to financial inclusion and have
aided the economy in employment generation and wealth creation by making credit available to the rural
segment. However, in recent times the sector is becoming a weaker segment in Indian financial System.

COMPANY'S POSITION

NBFC INDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

The Company is registered with the REI as a Non-Banking Financial Institution and is categorized as
Non-Deposit taking NBFC™ (NBFC-ND). The operations of the company during the year were centered
mainly around investments in shares and securities. Additionally the company was investing in Mutual
Funds 100, The main income of the Company is dividend income on long-term investments, interest on
fixed deposit and profit from sale of investments. The results of the Company’s operations for the
financial year ended 31" March, 2022 have been dealt with in the Director”s Report.

The Company, being into finance and investment activity, the impact of movement of stock markets
affects its profitability. The Company has long-term orientation in its investments and mainly invests in
listed equities. The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk with adequate retum,

OUTLOOK

A significant portion of the Company's income arises from investment and share trading operation, which
are largely dependent on the condition of the stock market. The stock market activity depends largely
upon the economic growth momentum and a combination of other factors like inflation, domestic savings,
surging portfolio investments into India etc. The unusual developments in the global economy may puse
uncertainties and challenges for the emerging market economies like India. However, the Company has
investment policy wherein it invests in those securitics which have easy liquidity, better vield and
potential for price appreciation in medium to long run.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented a system of intemal controls and risk management for achieving
operational efficiency, optimal utilization of resources, credible financial reporting and compliance with
local laws,

The system is aimed at covering all areas of operations. All transactions entered into by the Company are
duly suthorized and recorded correctly. The intemal financial controls within the Company are
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. It has implemented suitable controls
1o ensure that financial transactions are reported with accuracy and that there is strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. These controls are regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness. The
Company has robust policies and procedures which, inter alia, ensure integrity in conducting its business,
the safeguarding of its assels, timely preparation of reliable financial information, accuracy and
completeness in maintaining accounting records and the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
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In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the details of
significant changes (i.c. change of 25% or more as campared to the immediately previous financial year)
in key financial ratios are as follows:-

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Particulars Financial Yeur

A 2022 2021
GNPA (%) NIL NiL.
NNPA (%) NIL NIL
Return on Assets (%) 027 | on
Return on Equity (%) 0.28 .12
Net Interest Margin (%) 100 100
Cumrent Ratio 340 381
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00
Net Profit Margin (%) 45.08 179.15
EPS (Rs.) 803.77 383
Price Earnings Ratio ! N.A. NA.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Company's operations are influenced by many external factors beyond the control of the Company.
Investors are cautioned that the Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify, revise or
update any forward looking statement or opinion, on the basis of any subsequent developments, events or
information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Western India Commercial Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Western India Commercial
Company Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Sstatement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (3As), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the *‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matier below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities deseribed in the Auditor's responsibilities for
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the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The

results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Key sudit matters How our audit addressed the key audit
maiter
Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments Our audit procedures included (he following:

Refer Note No 6 of the Investments. The | ® We  have  obtained  independent
carrying value of the investments as at 31% confirmation of the number of units and
March 2022 was Rs. 50,762.57 lacs net assets value for each unit of the mutual
comprising investment in equity , preference fund units and market shares as at the year
and debt instruments and units of mutwal | end date,

funds -
* Also obuined the most necent sudited
: financials for unquoted investments

The carrying value of the investments
represents  97.78 % of the total assets of the * Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures
Company. made by the Company in this regard in the
Ind AS financial statements.

Considering the significance of the above
transition with respect to the financial
statements, the complexities and efforts
involved, this matter has been identified as a
key audit matter for the current year audit.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information , but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,
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Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company"s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whethtvt
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internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 10 continue s a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
{if) 1o evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matiers. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
The figures of the year ended 31% March, 2021 are based on the annual financial statements that

were audited by the erstwhile auditors whose report dated 30" June, 2021, expressed an
unmodified opinion, Our opinion is not modified in respect of thissma
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 33
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report thar:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as jt appears from our examination of those books;

() The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to [nd AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2 1o this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
provided by the Company {0 its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii.

iv.
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, 1 the Invesior
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

a) The management has represented that, 1o the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from barrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guaranice, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year, so reporting under this

clause for the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not
applicable,

For K. K. CHANANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0322232E

Krishna Kumar Chanani

Partner

Membership Number; 056045
UDIN: 22056045 AJQLOF8624
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 24, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of
Western India Commercial Company Limited

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(@) (A) The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment or capitalized
any intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022 and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a) (A) and (B) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.,

(b) The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment in the books of the
Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company

(¢}  There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).held by
the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

(d) The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right
of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022 and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

()  The Company has no inventory and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of
the year on the basis of security of current assets, Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee and provided security to (companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any oiher parties). Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(tii)(a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company being Non-Banking Finance Company, providing loans in the ordinary course
of business/ engaged in the business of financing of companies, provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The Company has neither accepted any deposils from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company in generally is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tmx, providemt fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to it,
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable,

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of goods and service
taxes, provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales- tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 31" March, 2022,

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or
interest thereon due to any lender during the year Accordingly, the requirement 1o report
on clause 3(ix)(a) to () of the Order are not applicable to the Company '

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
ffully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under wudit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.,




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(3) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true

and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT -
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government

(c)  As represented 10 us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3{xii)(a) to(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company:,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliarice with section 177 and 188 of Companies Aect,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standands,

(8) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has an internal audit System commensurate with the size and nature of itg
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit report of the company issued £ill 31% March,
2022, for the period under audit,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of section 102 of Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

(@) The Company has registered as required, under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

() According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause 3(xvi) (c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, there is
no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the

(xix)

(%x)

(xxi)

immediately preceding financial year respectively,

auditor has given their resignation pursuant to guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
for appointment of Statutory central auditors (SCA’s) /Statutory auditors (SA's) of
commercial bank (excluding RRB’s), UCB and NBFC's (including HFC) dated 27th of
April, 2021 and no objections, issues or concems were raised by the outgoing auditor,

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 1o believe
thntmymaturinlmcumin:yexistsmonlhedm-of&wamlmpmlhmmpw is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

With respect 10 obligations under Corporate social responsibility (CSR), the company is
not required 1o spend towards CSR based on criteria a8 specified under section 134(5) of
the Act during the year and there are no such ongoing projects and unspent amount
related to it, hence no reporting is reguired mbempmedunderﬂw-clmmc(m}(a}m{h]
of the Order.

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements is not applicable o the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For K. K. CHANANI & ASSOCIATES
Chantered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0322232E

Krishna Kumar Chanani
Partner

Membership Number: 056045
UDIN: 22056045AJQLOF8624
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 24, 2022




Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the Ind AS financial
statements of Western India Commercial Company Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemnal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
Western India Commercial Company Limited (“the Company™ as of March 31,2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statememts of the Company for the year
ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that & material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro]




based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind
AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as mecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
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based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAL

For K. K. CHANANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0322232E

Krishna Kumar Chanani
Partner

Membership Number: 056045
UDIN:; 22056045AJQLOF8624
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 24, 2022
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Balance Sheet a5 at 3151 March, 2022
(Al smotnts in Rs. lacs, unless atherwise stated)
Particulars Note | Asat 31stMarch, 2022 | As at 315t March,2021
A |ASsETS
1 (Finamcial Assers
(a) Cashand Cash Equivalents 4 1,12017 587.41
[b) Bank Balance other than cash & cash egquivalents 5 10.00 | 10,00
{c} Mwestments 6 50,762.57 | £1,822.50
[d) Other Financial Assets 7 13.23 8.45
TOTAL 5130597 62 AIR36
2 Assots
fa) Current Tax Assets (net) 8 8.28 683
TOTAL B.28 6.83
TOTAL ASSETS SEE._Z! % 13
8 fumun AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1 Aﬂnﬂdﬂ Liabilities
{a) Other Financial Linbilities 5 0.1 114
2 Inanclal Liabllities
{a) Provisions 10 137 027
[b] Deferred tax ablities b | 155627 2,731.84
{c) Other Non-Financis! Liabilities 12 121 .20
TOTAL 1,559.66 2,73345
|Equity
{aj Share Capital 13 18.00 18.00
(b} Other Equity 14 50,336.59 59,683, 74
Total £0,354.59 549, 70174
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES sgu.zs ]ﬁ_l&ill
The atcomparnying notes ane an integral past of the fimancisl statements,
In ferms of our repart sttached.
For K.K Chanani & Associates
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Registration No. 322232E
Hrighna Kumar Chanan Sulbhas Jajoo T.K.Bhattacharys
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No. 056045 DiM:- 0429371 O LOT11665
Place : Kolkata Ashish Kedia G5 Mohta
Date: 248th May, 2022 Manager and CEO Comguany Secretary
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LMITIE

Statamsent of Profit and Lows for the yeas ended T3t March, 2001
mhmu_mwmmw

Yoar Ended 31t Vear Ended
Particalars Mot | wach, 2022 Shst March, 2020
Frisem Dperatiany
fa} Enterest inoome 18 43.73 628
(&) Dividend Inzome 1% 037 2198
£} Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 17 2966 815
1 Remvanase from opesation 00.76 38,48 |
El lacorne W 013
@ Incomae {ie] 30080 38.40
Employer Benedd exeidas 1% n.4 17.86
Onher Experses n e 464
1) [Facal Exponses 1316 2350
) bafors Tax (Y] 16773 44,98
v n
Current Tax 2.5 650
b} Dadiired T &L 00
1305 (53 96
({01] for the Year 14468 5.0
vt} Comprehensive income
ieems that will not be reclissified to Profin fLoss)
[a] Equity instruments through 001 7 | |0, 720, 160} 2A.514.92
J00) trmemes thian will be reciasuified 1o Profa/iLass)
fa) Fingncia! Instrumanay thiough OO = 1338 L7453 )
[=h Tox impacis on sbove ml_ﬂl [F
|Other Comprehensiva income for the Year {i « i) ll.ﬂml 1756656
mkﬂwmhwmmﬂﬂ (8.325.50) 181560
1K} |Earnings pet Eguty Share JPV B, L00- sach) b | 80377 8300
Baic & Silsted (Ba)
The omaanying notes ane an integral parm of she Faantisl itatementi.
In terms of our repart stachad.
For KK Chananl & Assotistes For ard oa behall o the Soand of Directors
Chartered Acoountants
Fiem Regstration No. 3222321
Krishns Kumar Chenasd Subhas lajos T.K.Bhattacharg
Pastmar Chainman Director
Membeshp RNo. 0565 M- 00429371 DiNG- 00711445
Place ; Koliata Aabighs Kedla G.5 Mohia
Oate Bh May 2082 Monagerand CF0 Company Secretory
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WESTERN INDUA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LINITED
Cash Flow Statesnent for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(AN Eounia i R Bacy, unlosy atherehe sated)

—t i Meerh I
Plorw Froe Opaesting Actiuities
Profer bedore Tas %17 iR
fior:
n3 lenger retuesd weithen ek -
om IR EILTR] i 113 34
e oo Fptr Waiw (hanges
Profirf(Lowm) before Wi king Capitsl Ohanged 12473
o :
I Grier Povanvoasl Aty (4 r8j
i e Fnancal Labiiten 233§
Decrmase) m Prowition 110
HiDecroase) in Cther Non-Financisl Liabildes EL |
Gendratid from Qparations FIER T
Income Tax [PaudliRehund MI
CARN FROAUSED IN) OAFRATING ACTIWTIES (4) 1
Flow From investing Altivites
of Mautudl Fumd oo
o Wehtual Fusds
of Preference Shaes TLES
of share 196 333
of Thane aen
7 L0an Gven -
CASM FROM/AUSED SN] INVESTEVG ACTTVITIES (B 51a38
Floww From Fancing ALvilied

CASH FADM TUSED N FINANCING ACTIWTAS (& ¥

AT INCREASE/TDECREASE] IN CASH B CASH DQUTVALENTS (AsS+0) SR
Cash amd Cunsh Equivaienia al the begianing of the Year w7 Al | 571
Caut and Caph Equivalents ok the end of the Tear 113017 7.a1

=5 00 resitiants Bt the rousding o norma. sdopied by the (ompany
Note:

The above iassmpnt of carh flow Bas besn prepared under the ndinet Method at bt sut i IR0 AS T-"Staternent of Cash
Flowy',
The Jrzompasying nutey Ste B noegral part of thit YA JEREmEns.

im e af pur repont atachedt

ForiLK Chananl & Asprisies

CPariared Arcourtans

Firmn Regtmaton Mo IRI2ITE

iRl Tuffa Coasesi Sunhas Jakeo 1K Bhattsthanye
Partnes ICharanan Darectar
Memberiip Mo 058045 Dt 0429071 - DT EI66S
Mace | Kol Auid Lecha G5 Mokia
Dwtor: Dby by, 202 Migrager snd 0N Comgsany Setretany
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED @

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH,2022

1. Corporate Information

Western India Commercial Company Limited (“the Company™) is a public company limited by shares,
incorporated on 13™ August 1928 and domiciled in Indla. Its shares are listed on the Calcutta Stock
Exchange (CSE). The Company is carrying on business as a "Non-Banking Financial Company" (NBFC).
The Company is engaged mainly In investment in shares in securities & financial activity. The
Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as NBFC. The Company’s registered office Is 21,
Strand Road Kolkata — 700 001.

The financial stataments of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2022.

2, Basls of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind
AS) notified under section 133 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"),

b. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual
methed of accounting, except for certain financial assets and fiabilities that are measured at fair
value/ amortised cost as explained in the accounting policies below.

¢, Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also its functional currency
and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in lacs and rounded off to the
nearest two decimals, except when otherwise indicated

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES
3.1 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity Instrument of another entity.

() Financial Assets -

» Recognition And Initial Measurement
All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financlal asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

» Classification and Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
. Debt Instrurments at Amortized Cost;




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH,2022

0.

Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI);
Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL; and
Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

Einancial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amaortized cost if both

the following conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amartized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt Instruments at FVOC: A debt instrument is measured at the FVOCI if both of the following

conditions are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and

¢ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs, They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized In Other Comprehensive Income. However, the interest income,
losses & reversals, and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Interest calculated using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as investment income.

Measured at FYTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does nat meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as FVOU, i classifled as
FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Equity Instruments measured at FVOC!: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS = 109 are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, heid for trading are classified as FVTPL. For
all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present im Other
Comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable, In case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income, There Is
no reclassification of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income to profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. Dividends on investments are credited to profit or loss.




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" MARCH,2022

o Equity Investments: Investments in subsidiaries, assaclates and joint ventures are carried at cost
less accumulated impalrment, if any.

¥ Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

» Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS ~ 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or
at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i) Financial Liabilities

» Recognition And Initial Measurement

Finamcial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financlal liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

# Subsequent Measurement
Fimancial labilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FYTPL

A financial liability 1s classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it Is a derivative or it is
designated as such on Initlal recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate Interest)
amortisation process. Amartised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation is included
as finance costs in profit or loss.

¥ Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled
or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH,2022

of 2 new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised In the statement of
profit and loss.

» Offsetting Finoncial Instruments
Financlal assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on @ net basis or realize the asset and settie the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, term deposits with original maturity
of lass than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

3.3 impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment,
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an impairment review is
undertaken, and the recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and the asset’s value in use.

3.4 Employee Benefits Expenses
3.4.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service. These benefits Include performance incentive and compensated absences, which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period In which the employee renders
the related service.

3.5 Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.
3.5.1 Current Tax

The current tax s based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured &t the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
Balance Sheet date.

3.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or llability
in a transaction that is not @ business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurad at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31*' MARCH,2022

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation autharity and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis,

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there
Is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset
is written down to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified pericd. Section 115BAA provides a domestic
company with an irrevocable option to pay tax at a lower rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%).
The lower rate shall be applicable subject to certain conditions, including that the total income

should_éi computed without claiming specific deduction or exemptions. MAT would be inapplicable

to s to apply the lower tax rate,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
relate to items that are recognised In Other Comprehensive income or directly in Equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.

3.6 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprice has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not prabable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the cccurrence or non-occurrence of one or maore uncertain future events not
whally within the control of the entity.

v-"".
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED @
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%' MARCH,2022

3.7 Recognition of Interest income

Interest income for all financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is
recognised using the contractual interest rate.

3.8 Recognition of Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from Investments measured at FVTOCI) s recognised when the
Company's right to receive the payment Is established. This is established when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

3.9 Leases
I} Arrangements where the Company Is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identlfied asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use Asset and a
carresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
a term of twelve months or less {‘short-term leases’) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognises the rent as an operating expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liabilities includes these aptions when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liabilities i.e. present value of future lease payments adjusted for any lease payments made at
or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease Incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rates, Lease labilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-use asset if the Company
changes its assessment If whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset,

i) Arrangements where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per
the terms of the lease.
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